
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                                 Tuesday, February 20, 2018 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

                6:30 p.m. 
 
 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER-Harry Dailey-Chair  

 
II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. This is also the 

public’s opportunity to speak to any topic concerning the school district.  No complaints regarding specific staff 
members will be heard during a public meeting.  The District has established separate procedures for complaints 
against individual employees.   

  
IV. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report   

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report  
iii. Director of Technology’s Report  

b. Letters/Information 
i. Legislation Packet 

ii. Nutrition Association Action Network Advisory 
iii. SPED Timeliness Evaluation Letter 
iv. 2017-18 Forecast 
v. FYI-Election Candidates 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
VI. PREPARATION FOR DISTRICT MEETING 

i. Speaking to Which Article 
 

VII. REVIEW DISTRICT GOALS/OBJECTIVES 
 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 

 
IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i. Facilities 
 

X. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES 
 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐March 6, 6:30 PM at FRES‐Library 

                                                                   District Meeting‐ March 10, 9 AM at WLC‐Cafeteria 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
February 20, 2018 

 
 
I have been working with staff to prepare presentations for the District Meeting to be held on March 
10.  Once the board has determined who will speak to the separate warrant articles, I will provide a 
draft of a presentation for the board. 
 
In the board packet is a list of legislative considerations going on in Concord that involve education.  
To find the text of any of the proposed bills go to www.nh.gov, click on Laws and Rules.  Choose 
State Statutes Online, and then under pending legislations click on Bill Status Database.  Input the bill 
number and it will take you to the bill.  If you click on Bill Text, it will give you the entire text of the 
bill you are looking for. 
 
The district received a letter from the Department of Education regarding our level of compliance in 
meeting timeliness standards for IEPs.  For the 4th consecutive year the district has had a 100% 
compliance rate.  Many school districts struggle to meet this standard. Thank you to the Special 
Education staff. 
 
On Feb. 8th The House voted on the bill that would have restricted town/cities and school districts 
from creating a law that restricts the carrying of guns in schools.   The vote was 239-71 to send HB 
1749 to Interim Study, in effect killing the bill for this legislative session.  The policy committee may 
need to consider whether or not to amend our policy to prohibit the carrying of fire arms on school 
property. 
 
I have submitted a request to the lottery commission for information in regard to Keno and the funding 
that would be available to the district.  To clarify from the public hearing on the availability of funds 
RSA 287:47 indicates: 
 

284:47 Operation of Keno Games. –  
  II. (a) One percent shall be paid to the department of health and human services to support 
research, prevention, intervention, and treatment services for problem gamblers.  
  (b) The remainder, less the administrative costs of the lottery commission and prize payouts, 
shall be deposited in the education trust fund established in RSA 198:39 

 
This would indicated that as long as revenue was realized by the state from the Keno Games that the 
money would be placed in the education trust fund.  This is the fund that supports the Adequacy Grant.  
In order for the revenue to cease coming forward, Keno would need to be discontinued or show an 
inadequate profit.  I will have information on the revenue projections within the week. 
 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Student Support Services Report 
February 13, 2018  

 
  Due to the concerted efforts of Katie Gosselin, WLC High School Special Education Case 
Manager and Amanda Kovaliv, Director of School Counseling, two of our high school students 
have been enrolled in the spring cohort of the IMPACCT program. 

 
  IMPACCT is a partnership of New Hampshire Vocational Rehabilitation (NHRV), Granite State 
Independent Living (GSIL), and high schools throughout New Hampshire that was created to 
help augment and support the transitional services that schools are already providing their 
students with disabilities. This program is designed to help students with disabilities become 
part of the local work force as they navigate from high school to employment, post-secondary 
education, or training that leads to a career. 

 
  The curriculum of the IMPACCT program focuses on five employment transition services: 
 

1. Job Exploration Counseling 
2. Work-based Learning Experiences 
3. Comprehensive Transition Programming and Post-Secondary Education 
4. Work Readiness Training 
5. Instruction in Self-Advocacy 

 
   Our students will work through the academic curriculum presented as a simulated work   
   environment in small groups (15 students max.) for 14 weeks.  The weekly schedule is  
   comprised of 4 days/week of academic instruction and 1 day/week of paid work experience. 
   An afternoon computer lab is also available for credit recovery purposes.  
 
   Our students will also have access to a dedicated online module focusing on self-advocacy 
   and soft skills training. 
 
   Upon successful participation in and completion of all 5 modules, our students will not only be  
   better prepared for their future beyond high school, but will earn academic credit through 
   Extended Learning Opportunities (ELO’s). 
 
 
 
   Respectfully Submitted, 
 
   Betty Moore 
   Director of Student Support Services 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

  192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                       603-654-8088 

 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



  Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 
   Technology Director 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 
        603-654-8088 

 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

                                                            Kevin P. Verratti, Director of Technology 

Technology School Board Report 
02/13/2018 
 

 Some patches have become available for the Spectre and Meltdown exploits identified 

last month.  These exploits have the potential to affect every computer and 

chromebook in the district.  The first round of patches are available for Chromebooks 

and will be applied as soon as state testing is completed.  Patches applied to some older 

systems yielded less than favorable results, particularly in the MS Computer Lab.  Newer 

systems in the Science and HS Computer Labs have responded more favorably.  As 

patches and fixes for the exploits are released, they will be tested and applied to their 

respective systems.  Older systems that cannot be patched or are inoperable with the 

patch applied will be marked for recycling.   

 Digital evidence for NEASC was presented to the community the week of Jan. 29 in 

preparation for the in service day Feb 2nd.  Computers and Chromebooks were setup 

with individual standards and the public was invited to provide feedback. 

 NH State Assessment interim assessments have begun at FRES utilizing the 

chromebooks.    

Respectfully, 
 
Kevin P. Verratti 
Director of Technology 
SAU #63 
 



























Block Grants 
Putting School Meals on the Chopping Block 
 

 

Background: 
Since 1946, the federal government has provided 
students consistent access to healthy meals at 
school. Serving more than 30 million students each 
day, the National School Lunch and Breakfast 
Programs are critical to children’s health and 
academic success, contributing to economic 
growth and national security. 
 
Congress specifically designed these programs as 
“entitlements” to provide participating schools a 
reliable source of funds to serve all students in 
need. Schools receive a federal reimbursement for 
each meal served.  
 
Fixed-sum block grants would eliminate this guarantee, dismantling an effective federal program. 
Block grant proposals would harm students by cutting funds for school meal programs and 
nullifying crucial federal mandates, including nutrition standards and student eligibility rules for 
free and reduced price meals.  
     

Block Grants Harm Students:  
Thanks to entitlement status, school meal programs 
currently have the necessary funding to meet 
students’ nutritional needs. Funding fluctuates 
annually with the number of student meals served. 
When unforeseen situations occur – i.e. natural 
disaster strikes, school enrollment increases, or a 

factory closes - the number of students eligible to 
receive free and reduced price meals increases. Schools can serve more students knowing their 
reimbursement will rise to cover the added cost.  
 
Fixed-sum block grants provide a finite amount of funding each year. If circumstances change 
mid-year, states do not receive extra funds to cover the cost of serving meals to additional 
students in need. Cash strapped school districts would be forced to either cover meal program 
losses at the expense of academics or limit free and reduced price meals for students, putting 
America’s most vulnerable students at risk. Schools would abandon efforts to expand school 
breakfast service, proven to support academic achievement, since increasing student 
participation would increase costs.  

Block grants break the promise 
that America’s students will have 
consistent access to the nutrition 
they need to succeed. 



For more information,  
call (301) 686-3100 and ask for the 
Government Affairs and Media Relations 
Center.  

 

 

 
Block Grants Slash Funds for School Meals: 
The 2016 House-proposed block grant pilot would have slashed funds for school meal programs 
through an immediate funding cut and the elimination of annual adjustments, which help 
schools keep pace with rising costs. The proposal could have resulted in a crippling 12% funding 
cut after three years, according to an analysis by the Center on Budget and Policy Priorities 
(CBPP).  
 
History demonstrates that block grants shrink available funding over time, severely limiting a 
program’s ability to serve Americans in need. A CBPP analysis of 13 major housing, health, and 
social services block-grant programs reveals that combined funding for the programs declined 
by 26 percent — or $13 billion in 2016 dollars — from 2000 to 2016. Notably, when adjusted for 
inflation, funding under the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) block grant has 
plummeted by 32 percent, despite population growth. 
 

Block Grants Abolish Crucial Federal Standards: 
Block grants void federal rules that ensure the uniformity and consistency of school meal 
programs across the nation. States could set their own rules dictating which children are eligible 
for free or reduced price meals, restricting access for low income children currently enrolled in 
the program. States could abandon all federal nutrition mandates, compromising the quality 
and variety of school meals.  
 
Block grants could void Buy American mandates and impact USDA Foods assistance for school 
meal programs, which have supported America’s farmers and introduced students to a wide 
variety of healthy US grown foods. 
 
 

In a September 2015 report, the non-partisan Congressional Budget Office warned that: 
“block grants that are smaller than the funding that current legislation would provide would 
probably eliminate access to nutrition programs for some children and reduce it for others. 
Such grants would also leave the programs unable to respond automatically to economic 
downturns.” 

http://www.cbpp.org/research/food-assistance/house-proposal-to-block-grant-school-meal-programs-would-put-childrens
http://www.cbpp.org/research/federal-budget/funding-for-housing-health-and-social-services-block-grants-has-fallen


Wilton ‐Lyndeborough Cooperative SD #063 NH

Part 1: IMMEDIATE LOSS*
Number of Paid breakfasts served in SY 2016:                                                   4,406 

Number of Paid lunches served in SY 2016:                                                 23,643 
Number of Paid snacks served in SY 2016:                                                          ‐   

Number of all lunches served in SY 2016 (paid+ F/R):                                                 38,628 
Total reimbursement for all meals served in SY 2016: $80,667.95

Paid Breakfast Reimbursement Loss = $1,321.80
Paid Lunch Reimbursement Loss = $7,565.76
Paid Snack Reimbursement Loss = $0.00

Six Cent Certification Loss =  $2,317.68

IMMEDIATE LOSS OF FUNDS =  $11,205.24

Your Block Grant Lump Sum =  $69,462.71

No Block Grant, with 2% Inflation Adjustment: $82,281.31
Static Block Grant Lump Sum: $69,462.71

Dollar Amount Decrease $12,818.60

PERCENT DECREASE IN FUNDING: 15.58%

No Block Grant, with 2% Inflation Adjustment: $83,926.94
Block Grant: SY 2018 $69,462.71

Dollar Amount Decrease: $14,464.23

PERCENT DECREASE IN FUNDING: 17.23%

No Block Grant: SY 2019 with 2% Inflation Adjustment $85,605.47
Block Grant: SY 2019 $69,462.71

Dollar Amount Decrease:  $16,142.76

PERCENT DECREASE IN FUNDING: 18.86%

Cumulative funding over three years ‐ no block grant:  $251,813.72

Cumulative funding over three years with block grant:  $208,388.13

TOTAL LOSS OF FUNDS OVER 3 YEARS = $43,425.59

  School Meals Block Grant Calculator

Complete the green fields to see an estimate of funds lost. Results are a best‐case scenario, based on the pilot proposed in 

2016. Natural disasters, economic recession, and state discretion to divert funds would significantly increase funds lost. Don't 

forget to print your results!

Part 2: LOSS OVER TIME**

*Alaska, Hawaii and Puerto Rico paid meal reimbursements are significantly greater than reflected in this tool and would result in greater losses than shown.

**Under the current entitlement funding model, reimbursements are increased each year to adjust for inflation. This annual increase in funding would be 

eliminated under a block grant which remains static for 3 years.

Year One

Year Two

Year Three

Part 3: CUMULATIVE LOSS AFTER THREE YEARS 





Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

General Fund Revenue Fiscal Year:   2017-2018 As of 1/31/18

Budget Adjustments GL Budget YTD Balance Anticipated Budget Balance Comments

School District Assessment:

Current Appropriation $9,071,899.00 ($397,818.00) $8,674,081.00 $5,771,785.60 $2,902,295.40 $2,902,295.40 $0.00

Other Local Revenue Sources:

Preschool Tuition $12,150.00 $12,150.00 $5,100.00 $7,050.00 $4,200.00 ($2,850.00) 7 vs 9 students 

Extended Day Tuition $40,500.00 $40,500.00 $20,273.56 $20,226.44 $14,400.00 ($5,826.44) 16 vs 20 students

Interest on Investments $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($5,000.00) Trusts

Use of Facilities $200.00 $200.00 $485.00 ($285.00) $1,500.00 $1,785.00

Refund Prior Year Expenses $28,920.00 $28,920.00 $0.00 $28,920.00 $21,981.60 ($6,938.40) Erate 

Other Local Revenue $200.00 $200.00 $163.69 $36.31 $200.00 $163.69

State Sources:

Equitable Ed Aid $1,362,922.00 ($16,235.00) $1,346,687.00 $945,928.00 $400,759.00 $400,759.00 $0.00 10/1/17 update

Statewide Enhanced Ed Tax $1,202,139.00 $17,501.00 $1,219,640.00 $0.00 $1,219,640.00 $1,219,640.00 $0.00

Other State Aid $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $2,994.21 $1,994.21

School Building Aid $128,000.00 $128,000.00 $64,000.00 $64,000.00 $64,000.00 $0.00

Catastrophic Aid $151,042.00 ($8,879.00) $142,163.00 $141,067.29 $1,095.71 $0.00 ($1,095.71) 195,927 at 72%

Vocational Transportation Aid $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,327.00 $673.00 $0.00 ($673.00)

Federal Sources:

Medicaid $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $29,116.73 $50,883.27 $50,883.27 $0.00

   Total Revenues $12,086,972.00 ($405,431.00) $11,681,541.00 $6,980,246.87 $4,701,294.13 $4,682,853.48 ($18,440.65)

Transfers to Food Service Fund $219,600.00 $219,600.00 $0.00 $219,600.00 $219,600.00 $0.00

Transfers to Special Revenue Fund (Grants) $299,923.00 $299,923.00 $0.00 $299,923.00 $299,923.00 $0.00

Use of Fund Balance from 16-17 $0.00 $405,431.00 $405,431.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Total: $12,606,495.00 $0.00 $12,606,495.00 $6,980,246.87 $5,220,817.13 $5,202,376.48 ($18,440.65)

Adjusted for MS-24R Revised Revenues per DRA



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District

General Fund Expenditures Fiscal Year:   2017-2018 As of:  1/31/2018

By Object Code

Budget Adjustments GL Budget YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance Comments

Salaries and Wages - 100s $5,599,005.10 $33,283.00 $5,632,288.10 $2,785,621.66 $2,846,666.44 $2,890,244.14 ($43,577.70) tchr from Title II

Employee Benefits - 200s $2,783,581.38 ($61.00) $2,783,520.38 $1,343,763.85 $1,439,756.53 $1,363,217.36 $76,539.17 savings on heatlh, retire, wc

Purchased Professional Services - 300s $312,032.00 $6,963.14 $318,995.14 $125,538.50 $193,456.64 $147,292.15 $46,164.49

Purchased Property Services - 400s $249,312.00 $2,787.96 $252,099.96 $136,352.43 $115,747.53 $115,747.53 $0.00

Other Purchased Services - 500s $1,262,743.00 $331.10 $1,263,074.10 $611,501.28 $651,572.82 $519,401.34 $132,171.48 savings on SPED tuition, transport

Supplies - 600s $520,096.00 ($13,695.14) $506,400.86 $288,219.70 $218,181.16 $185,262.69 $32,918.47

Property, Equipment - 700s $225,101.00 $6,828.91 $232,898.94 $154,649.31 $78,249.63 $42,333.43 $35,916.20

Dues, Fees, Assemblies, Interest - 800s $443,211.00 ($516.00) $442,695.00 $415,141.78 $27,553.22 $27,553.22 ($0.00)

Principal on Debt - 910 $600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 $600,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  Subtotal Expenditures $11,995,081.48 $35,921.97 $12,031,972.48 $6,460,788.51 $5,571,183.97 $5,291,051.86 $280,132.11

Special Revenue Funds $299,923.00 $0.00 $299,923.00 $299,923.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Food Service Funds $219,600.00 $0.00 $219,600.00 $219,600.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 ($20,000.00) transfer to cover deficit

Capital Reserve Funds $0.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  Subtotal Transfer of Funds $519,523.00 $55,000.00 $574,523.00 $574,523.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 ($20,000.00)

Grand Total: $12,514,604.48 $90,921.97 $12,606,495.48 $7,035,311.51 $5,571,183.97 $5,311,051.86 $260,132.11



Declaration of Candidacy January‐ February 2018

School Board      

Candidate Town Term Current Seat Held By

Carol LeBlanc Wilton 3 yr. Carol LeBlanc

Alexander LoVerme Wilton 3 yr. Alexander LoVerme

James Kofalt Wilton 3 yr.

Edwina Hastings Wilton 3 yr.

Cynthia Foss Wilton 3yr.

Jonathan Vanderhoof Lyndeborough 3 yr. Geoffrey Brock

Budget Committee
Candidate Town Term Current Seat Held By

Lyndeborough 3 yr. Karen Grybko

Wilton 3 yr. James Kofalt

Wilton 3 yr. Dawn Tuomala

Moderator    

Candidate Town Term Current Seat Held By

Walter Holland Both 1 yr. Walter Holland



Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Goals and Objectives  

 

5.23.17 This document replaces the Good to Great Plan. These goals and objectives approved on 6.20.17. 

 

0‐12 Months  1‐2 Years  3‐5 Years 

Evaluate/improve/track student achievement

 Determine best assessment tool 

 Define process for surveying students out of 
school 

 Start/continue discussions with grades 6‐10  on 
where they are going 

Develop a system to follow up to determine level of 
preparedness for career/college 

 Start with 2017 graduates and follow up in 18‐19 

School within a school‐charter or gifted  
program 

Increase student and staff pride and morale 

 Move toward recognizing excellence throughout 
the district by engaging staff and students with 
expanding opportunities for participation. 

Consider developing a program such as trade/career 
school  or working with other districts 

 Bring in outside people to talk about career 
choices students may not be aware of  

 Tap into community resources 

 Explore several options to enhance non college 
bound student opportunities 

 

Look for opportunities for Interscholastic  Academic 
Competition 

 Granite State Challenge‐Determine when WLC is 
eligible to enter 

 Math League 

 Model UN 

 Quiz Bowl 
 Lego League 
 Calculus League 

Explore ways students can navigate the graduation 
process  

 Provide additional guidance support  

 Provide in house college representation 

 Affiliation with 2 & 4 year colleges 

 Provide extra support to those students who 
may not have a support system 

 

Survey communities of Wilton‐Lyndeborough  

 Create a survey with a list of potential questions    
(scale 1‐5, N/A) and ability to comment  

Increased communication with town leadership 

 Attend quarterly selectmen meetings 

 

District wide calendar 

 A master calendar will be created 

Expand and monetize the RISE program 

 Determine the amount maximum of tuition 
per state regulation 

 

More student involvement in district 

 Explore student leadership role at board meetings 
(non‐voting member) 

   



 

 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, February 6, 2018 3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

   6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 

Present: Harry Dailey, Geoff Brock, Matt Ballou, Miriam Lemire, Mark Legere, Joyce Fisk, Carol 7 

LeBlanc, Alex LoVerme and Charlie Post (arrived after the budget committee mtg.) 8 

 9 

Superintendent Bryan Lane, Business Administrator Lise Tucker, Director of Student Support Services 10 

Betty Moore, Principals Brian Bagley, Tim O’Connell, Curriculum Coordinator Julie Heon, IT Director 11 

Kevin Verratti and Clerk Kristina Fowler 12 

 13 

I. CALL TO ORDER  14 
Chairman Dailey called the meeting to order at 6:31pm. 15 

 16 

II. ELEMENTARY STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 17 
Mr. O’Connell honored the students of the month from 1st grade at FRES. 18 

 19 

III. GEOGRAPHY/SPELLING BEE WINNERS 20 
Ms. Moore-Lazar and Ms. Lhotsky, WLC MS social studies teachers, honored winner of the Geography 21 

Bee, Elisabeth Jacob. Mr. O’Connell honored winner of the FRES Scripps Spelling Bee, 2nd time 22 

champion, Anya Zoltko. 23 

 24 

IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 25 
Superintendent Lane informed members that the presentation regarding solar panels will not take place 26 

this evening. Public comment will be added prior to the budget committee leaving and “board budget 27 

discussion” will be added at the board’s request. 28 

 29 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 30 
There was no public comment to report. 31 

 32 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 33 

i. Solar Panels-WLC-John Zavgren 34 
The presentation was cancelled for this evening.  35 

ii. Gettysburg-Marc Belanger 36 
WLC HS social studies teacher, Marc Belanger accompanied two WLC students who gave a brief 37 

PowerPoint presentation on their trip including activities and sites they saw when they went to 38 

Gettysburg.  They noted the smaller group allowed for a better learning environment. The students 39 

thanked the school board for making the trip possible with the use of the district van.  40 

iii. Washington D.C.-Marc Belanger 41 
Mr. Belanger gave a brief overview of his request to take a small group (8-10 students) to Washington, 42 

D.C. over April vacation. A student application will help him to narrow down multiple requests.  The 43 

group would leave WLC the Friday before vacation started and return Tuesday night. The trip will be 44 

tailored to what the students really want to do such as watch a Supreme Court case in session and tour 45 

Mont Vernon.  The district van would be used to travel there and back and while in the city they would 46 

use the Metro system to get around. Students are responsible for cost of lodging, gas ($70 pp added in for 47 

gas), Metro pass and food. He confirmed there would be no disadvantages regarding curriculum for those 48 

students who do not attend.  Principal Bagley reported stipends of $1,500 had been allocated for the 49 

Montreal trip that was canceled and he requested they be used to offset the cost of this trip for the 50 

students.  51 



 

 

 52 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Brock and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to approve the trip to Washington, 53 

D.C. 54 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 55 

 56 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to approve the $1,500 57 

(stipends) be used to offset the cost of the Washington D.C. trip for the students. 58 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 59 

 60 

VII. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 61 

a. Reports 62 

i. Superintendent’s Report 63 
Superintendent Lane reported he continued to spend time working on the budget. Thursday is the Public 64 

Hearing.  He informed the group of a noticeable change in enrollment numbers which indicates the senior 65 

class increased and junior class decreased; this is due to reclassification. This did not mean we lost 66 

students from the junior class, they moved to the senior class as they earned enough credits to qualify to 67 

graduate. He gave a brief overview of House Bill 1749 which says districts and towns would not be able 68 

to set specific ordnances to carry arms. There is no restriction for a person to carry a firearm in NH.  We 69 

will continue to follow our policy JICI as it currently does not need any changes and it states we would 70 

notify the police department.  The statute still exists that students are not allowed to carry weapons.  The 71 

legislation is unclear at this time on what will happen.  February 2 was a workshop day with scheduled 72 

events for staff.  He has started his next class at SNU.  He will provide a packet regarding legislation for 73 

the next meeting and can provide additional information if asked.  He will be attending the ASAA 74 

national conference in TN February 14-17. 75 

ii. Business Administrator’s Report 76 
Ms. Tucker reported she completed the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the audit, and 77 

worked on the actuary to complete the required GASB45.  The audit is complete; we received an 78 

“unmodified opinion” on the financial statements which means we had a “clean” audit. She attended the 79 

NH Association of Business Officials meeting which included a presentation from Conway Solutions 80 

promoting their eCopy software, Melanson Health presented on the associations that they work with and 81 

Drummond and Woodsum focused on procurement goals and bidding requirements.  Drummond and 82 

Woodsum recommend soliciting based on the following, first bids are based on price only, second 83 

request for proposal (RFP) are based on price and other considerations and third request for qualifications 84 

(RFQ) are based on specific job qualifications (example roofing).  The food service program at FRES had 85 

their State Administrative Review which is done every three years. Meal patterns, meal quality, finances 86 

and general compliance are reviewed.  A letter has been received indicating “all is fine and ok” to 87 

continue.  She confirmed feedback received was that they were happy with the mealtime program, 88 

reconciliation and detail we have with our food service reports.  The last Joint Loss Management 89 

Committee was cancelled but a walkthrough was completed at FRES and the administrative part of the 90 

meeting is being done via email. There were no new claims this quarter. She attended the Emergency 91 

Operations Plan workshop with Mr. Erb (Facilities Manager) which included an overview and what is 92 

required for the plan. Currently we have three school plans in draft form and they are required to be 93 

submitted annually. Feedback will be needed by town officials before submission. 94 

iii. Principals’ Reports 95 
Principal O’Connell reported STAR 360 benchmarks were recently completed. On the professional 96 

development day time was spent analyzing the data, formulating plans, a Cigna workshop was held 97 

regarding mindfulness, and time was spent on Reader’s Workshop and curriculum.  February 1st the PTO 98 

annual game night fundraiser was held which raised funds for the 5th grade yearbooks. Some of the FRES 99 

events happening are the annual Jump Rope for Heart fundraiser and to get students motivated, the “Hot 100 

Shots” jump rope troupe from South Londonderry School will visit on February 23. Also the “Go for 101 

Gold” bobsled reading challenge will be happening which involves students tracking minutes of reading 102 

time outside of school. (Goal is 5000 minutes by February 23rd.)  Kindergarten registration night is 103 



 

 

Thursday, March 15, 5pm-7pm at LCS.  The Scripps Spelling Bee was held on January 18th, Anya Zoltko 104 

was the champion.  Ms. Lemire commented that the 5th graders did a great job during the PTO game 105 

night. Principal O’Connell agreed and noted they raised a lot of money for this event. 106 

 107 

Principal Bagley reported three students from WLC participated in the Monadnock Music Festival on 108 

January 20th.  They were taught and conducted by a world renowned choral instructor. This year there 109 

were 77 members participating. On January 31st and February 1st, all were invited to assist in the analysis 110 

of evidence the faculty has collected as part of the re-accreditation process.  This is a continuation of self-111 

reflection that began with surveying students, staff and parents earlier this fall. By evaluating the 112 

evidence they will better understand what it says about the school’s alignment to Principals of Effective 113 

Practice. This is a new process this year.   114 

iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 115 
Dr. Heon reported the Science Committee meetings started which involves looking at what we are doing 116 

now with Mystery Science program and how it aligns with the new standards and what are the options in 117 

the future.  Professional Learning Teams at FRES are being held weekly; the focus is on creating the 118 

scope and sequence documents for each grade level and discussions about effectiveness of competencies 119 

and possible alignments between subject areas.  Interim and final assessments have been scheduled at 120 

FRES, some in February and the first week of March.  Interim testing is “sort of a mini test” (to give an 121 

idea of benchmark) for grades 1-8 and the new revised science test for grades 5, 8, 11. Grade 11 has not 122 

participated in SBAC testing before on the computer and it will be new for staff and students. Taking the 123 

interim gives an idea of content and process for test taking. A chart was provided with the addition of 124 

January STAR 360 data. She explained grade level equivalent, example 1.5, the 1 represents the 1st grade 125 

and .5 represents fifth month of school. Results show more than half of the grades are at that level or 126 

exceeded and some are coming pretty close to that. Since January we have reconvened our WIN (What I 127 

Need) Team at FRES to look at student performance and regroup students who require intervention. They 128 

will begin to receive intervention if they have not already and at the MS they have made some 129 

adjustments to the approach. They chose to work with Khan Academy Math Program for the last month 130 

and are going forward in the foreseeable future with it. It is much richer in content and has built in 131 

assessments. We can provide staff with progress monitoring data but not benchmark data like STAR 360. 132 

She confirmed for Chairman Dailey generally speaking, most grade levels are keeping up the pace in 133 

math and reading. In some cases about half a grade above and there are some cohorts where student 134 

performance is inconsistent for a variety of reasons and beyond our control but we keep trying. 135 

  136 

VIII. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 137 

a. FY 2018-19 Budget/Warrants & Preparation for Public Hearing 138 
Present: Leslie Browne, Pamela Altner, Bill Ryan, Edwina Hastings, Lisa Post, Christine Tiedemann, 139 

Dawn Tuomala, and Jim Kofalt 140 

 141 

The budget committee was already in session as they met prior at 6:30pm. 142 

 143 

Chairman Dailey reported he attended the last budget committee meeting.  He explained this evenings 144 

process, Chairman Browne will speak, and then the school board will discuss their next steps.  The public 145 

hearing is Thursday and it is important that both boards have numbers although they do not have to be the 146 

same.  147 

 148 

Chairman Browne reviewed that the committee met to discuss the information that was provided at the 149 

last joint meeting. They agreed to support curriculum and training but did see some areas for reduction.  150 

They are recommending a 1.66% reduction over FY18 which is an operating budget of $12,344,685 151 

(reduction of $89,900).  They added back in for curriculum, math coach and training as they agreed it 152 

was important for students and the school to progress.  Mr. Kofalt confirmed the net put back in was 153 

about $28,000 (original proposed cuts totaled $116,245).  Chairman Dailey noted having attended the last 154 

budget committee meeting; he was pleased with the process they went through and feels they took 155 



 

 

consideration into the information provided.  He questions if the school board could get to the budget 156 

committees number and go to the district meeting unified. He notes the Superintendent Lane can come to 157 

this number and opened the floor to the school board for discussion on this and the process.  Mr. Brock 158 

comments he is delighted to see the curriculum pieces back in and questioned the Superintendent if this is 159 

a workable budget which Superintendent Lane responds yes.  A brief discussion was had. 160 

 161 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Brock and SECONDED by Mr. Ballou to accept the budget committee’s 162 

operating budget number of $12,344,685. 163 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 164 

 165 

Chairman Dailey voiced appreciation for the process and work the budget committee did. The warrant 166 

will be updated to reflect an operating budget of $12,344,685. 167 

 168 

Ms. Post noted starting with the budget “kept down” made it easier to fine tune and wants to see that 169 

same direction of staying on the low side and keeping tax payers in mind as well as students. She thanked 170 

administration for providing information on a timely basis. 171 

 172 

The budget committee will briefly meet to discuss details of the public hearing after the joint session. 173 

Chairman Dailey noted the budget committee runs the hearing and if they need anything to let us know.  174 

Ms. Post informs the group an audio recorder will be used for help with the minutes. No objection was 175 

heard regarding this but Mr. Kofalt notes it is important to inform the public of this although it can be 176 

taped as it is a public meeting.  Mr. Kofalt should contact Mr. Verratti to coordinate this. Superintendent 177 

Lane asked if any changes are needed to the draft presentation (proactively prepared) to let him know.  178 

The draft was provided to the board chairs and it is ok to share it with all members. The budget 179 

committee will review it when they reconvene and Chairman Browne will return after they meet to 180 

provide feedback.  They reviewed the process for the budget hearing, the budget committee opens, the 181 

budget is presented first with the help of the Superintendent, the warrants are read, (articles are on the 182 

slides-it is important to keep them in order), recommendations are noted (recommended or not 183 

recommended). There will be a separate presentation from the budget committee regarding kindergarten 184 

and each board’s position will be stated.  The CIP will be added to the slides.  The budget committee will 185 

conclude the hearing. 186 

 187 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Altner and SECONDED by Ms. Tiedemann to recess the budget committee 188 

session at 7:22pm. 189 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 190 

 191 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 192 
There was no public comment to report.  193 

 194 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 195 

a. Treasurer’s Report-December 2017 196 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. Brock to approve the consent agenda. 197 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 198 

 199 

X. 2018-2019 SCHOOL DISTRICT CALENDAR 200 
Superintendent Lane reviewed this is the time for planning the district calendar. The need for more 201 

professional development has been identified.   He would like to increase the calendar days from 174 to 202 

177 without reducing the hours, all additional days to be early release days. This would increase 203 

instructional hours and increase professional development.  The teachers CBA indicates the calendar can 204 

be up to 180 days; (currently 174) and he is asking for input from the school board before he moves 205 

forward.  If the board would like to move in this direction, he will verify with the attorney that this is 206 

within the contract to avoid a grievance scenario.  As part of the process the calendar is shared with the 207 



 

 

teachers for comment although the school board approves the calendar. Discussion was had regarding 208 

returning to a 180 day calendar and not counting hours. Discussion also included not doing the bear 209 

minimum, focusing on students first, would be fair to have some sort of agreement with the teachers due 210 

to adding additional time, it is consistent with the resources provided (to increase student achievement 211 

and provide additional professional development).  Superintendent Lane notes by increasing the days, the 212 

hours of the paraprofessionals who are not working would need to be increased. The cost is about $6,000. 213 

This is the reason for a gradual increase in days. The money could be funded through anticipated 214 

retirements. If it is found that these days are “fruitful” we would look for additional days.  Chairman 215 

Dailey notes, full disclosure, his spouse is a paraprofessional.  Consensus from the members is to move 216 

forward. Superintendent Lane will speak to the attorney, share it with the teachers; they may want to 217 

communicate with the board when he brings it back for board review. He confirmed there would not be 218 

additional bus charges; the only monetary issue is the additional time for paraeducators and attorney fees. 219 

 220 

XI. ACTION ITEMS 221 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 222 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to approve the minutes of 223 

January 23, 2018 as amended. 224 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 225 

 226 

b. Audit Acceptance 227 
Ms. Tucker confirmed the district received an “unmodified opinion” (clean audit), same as last year.  The 228 

Governess Letter indicates no findings but mentioned regarding student activities, a couple of deposit 229 

receipts were missing. She confirmed it was a paperwork issue and the money all matched just the 230 

documents were missing.  Chairman Dailey suggests as this has come up previously, that we find a way 231 

to “fix this” (missing deposit receipts). Ms. Tucker confirms there are fewer instances than previously.  232 

(Goal is zero) Ms. Tucker was thanked and appreciation was voiced for this clean audit. 233 

  234 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Brock and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to accept the audit, year ending June 235 

30, 2017. 236 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 237 

 238 

XII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 239 

i. Budget Liaison 240 
Mr. Post reported Chairman Dailey captured the flavor of the budget committee meeting and the 241 

committee is prepared to move forward. They took a deep look at everything we discussed and he 242 

believes we are in a good place. Chairman Dailey concurs.   243 

 244 

 BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 245 
Chairman Dailey states he believes (having attended the budget committee meeting) the budget 246 

committee and school board are in agreement. They took to heart our feedback; there is a good “give and 247 

take”.   Chairman Browne will return after the budget committee adjourns to provide feedback on the 248 

slides and inform us if anything is needed. 249 

 250 

The protocol was reviewed for public hearing which includes the budget committee sitting up front; 251 

board members in attendance are in the audience (as many that can attend would be great). The 252 

Superintendent will present for the school board unless they are asked to speak.  It is important to get 253 

feedback from the public. 254 

 255 

It was questioned if a vote for recommendation was taken on warrant article #08 or not. 256 

 257 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to recommend warrant article #08 258 

(Building/Equipment & Roadway Capital Reserve fund). 259 



 

 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 260 

 261 

XIII. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 262 
There were none to report. 263 

 264 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 265 
Mr. John Vanderhoof, Lyndeborough, questioned if the DOE responded to Superintendent Lane yet on 266 

the kindergarten questions (raised at the last meeting).  Superintendent Lane responded no, the Attorney 267 

General had not responded to Caitlin Davis at the DOE yet.  268 

 269 

XV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 270 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to enter Non-Public Session to 271 

discuss a student and personnel matter RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 8:08pm. 272 

Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 273 

 274 

  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 275 
The Board entered public session at 8:13pm. 276 

 277 

A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes for 50 years by Mr. LoVerme and 278 

SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc. 279 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 280 

 281 

Chairman Browne returns and reported no significant changes and will email Superintendent Lane and 282 

Chairman Dailey with the format. In regard to the draft presentation Superintendent Lane provided she 283 

will email him with a few things to add and discuss structure in the email. Chairman Dailey reiterated if 284 

they need anything to let us know. 285 

 286 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 287 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Fisk to adjourn the Board meeting at 288 

8:16pm. 289 

Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 290 

 291 

Respectfully submitted, 292 

Kristina Fowler 293 
 294 


	WLC School Board Agenda 2.20.18
	Supt report February 20, 2018
	SSS report February
	Tech. Board Report 2-13-2018
	Legislation  Packet
	SNA Advisory
	Block-Grants-Fact-Sheet-2018
	SNA-Block-Grant-Calculator WLC 063

	SPED Timeliness Evaluations
	GF Revenue 17-18 013118
	GF Expenditures 17-18 by Obj Smry 013118
	Candidates 2018
	adopted WLC Goals and Objectives May 2017
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 2.6.18

